BYLAWS

OF

THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS/TEXAS A&M INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Restated to Include Amendments Adopted on

March 13, 1997

(Approved by the Board of Regents on May 8, 1997)

May 2, 1997

(Approved by the Board of Regents on May 8, 1997)

September 22, 1999

(Approved by the Board of Regents on November 11, 1999)

December 9, 1999

(Approved by the Board of Regents on February 10, 2000)

October 26, 2001

(Approved by the Board of Regents on November 8, 2001)

June 26, 2003

(Approved by the Board of Regents on August 7, 2003)

Ratified September 29, 2004

(Approved by the Board of Regents on August 12, 2004)

May 25, 2006

(Approved by the Board of Regents on July 13, 2006)

January 30, 2008

(Approved by the Board of Regents on February 7, 2008)

July 14, 2011

(Approved by the Board of Regents on August 25, 2011)

July 22, 2013

(Approved by the Board of Regents on August 22, 2013)

May 10, 2017

(Approved by the Board of Regents on May 10, 2017)

February 28, 2018

(Approved by the Board of Regents on May 1, 2018)

June 27, 2019

(Approved by the Board of Regents on August 15, 2019)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I ST	RUCTURE AND PURPOSES	1
Section 1.	Structure	1
Section 2.	Member	
Section 3.	Purposes	
Section 4.	Approval by System	
Section 5.	Prohibited Transactions	
Section 6.	Revolving Door	
ARTICLE II O	FFICES	2
Section 1.	Principal Place of Business	2
Section 2.	Registered Office and Registered Agent	
ARTICLE III B	OARD OF DIRECTORS	3
Section 1.	Powers	3
Section 2.	Number	3
Section 3.	Appointment and Term	3
Section 4.	Removal and Resignation	3
Section 5.	Vacancies	3
Section 6.	Meetings of Directors	4
Section 7.	Annual Meetings	4
Section 8.	Regular Meetings	4
Section 9.	Special Meetings	4
Section 10.	Notice of Meetings	4
Section 11.	Quorum	4
Section 12.	Voting	4
Section 13.	Conduct of Business	4
Section 14.	Compensation of Directors; Expenses	5
ARTICLE IV C	COMMITTEES	5
Section 1.	Board Committees	5
Section 2.	Procedures; Meetings; Quorum	
Section 3.	Nominating Committee	6
ARTICLE V O	FFICERS	6
Section 1.	Number, Titles, and Term of Office	6
Section 2.	Removal	
Section 3.	Vacancies	6
Section 4.	Powers and Duties of the Chairman of the Board	6
Section 5.	Powers and Duties of the Vice Chairman of the Board	6
Section 6.	Powers and Duties of the Vice Chairman for Policy	
Section 7.	Powers and Duties of the President	
Section 8.	Powers and Duties of the Treasurer	
Section 9.	Powers and Duties of the Secretary	7

ARTICLE VI	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	8
Section 1.	Fiscal Year	8
Section 2.	Seal	8
Section 3.	Notice and Waiver of Notice	
Section 4.	Public Information	8
Section 5.	Open Meetings	8
ARTICLE VII	INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS	8
Section 1.	Right to Indemnification	8
Section 2.	Advance Payment	9
Section 3.	Appearance as a Witness	9
Section 4.	Nonexclusivity of Rights	9
Section 5.	Insurance	9
Section 6.	Savings Clause	
ARTICLE VII	I AMENDMENTS	10
Section 1.	Amendment	10

BYLAWS

OF

THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS/TEXAS A&M INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY

ARTICLE I STRUCTURE AND PURPOSES

- Section 1. <u>Structure</u>. The University of Texas/Texas A&M Investment Management Company (the "Corporation") is a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Texas, including the Texas Business Organizations Code (the "TBOC"). The Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation (as amended from time to time, the "Articles of Incorporation") were filed in the office of the Secretary of the State of Texas on November 15, 1995.
 - Section 2. <u>Member</u>. The Corporation shall have no members.
- Section 3. <u>Purposes</u>. The Corporation is organized and will be operated exclusively for charitable and educational purposes. In accomplishment of such purposes, the Corporation will be administered solely for the purpose of aiding, assisting, supporting and acting on behalf of The University of Texas System (the "System"), an agency of the State of Texas, in the performance of its essential governmental function of providing higher education in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas authorizing and governing the System and the creation of the Corporation. The Corporation shall have, without limitation, the following purposes:
 - (a) To invest funds under the control and management of the Board of Regents of the System (the "Board of Regents"), including the permanent university fund, as designated by the Board of Regents in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas; and
 - (b) To perform such other activities or functions that the Board of Directors of the Corporation determines are necessary or appropriate for the accomplishment of the purposes of the Corporation, provided, however, that the Corporation may not engage in any business other than investing funds designated by the Board of Regents pursuant to a contract with the System for the investment of such funds.
- Section 4. <u>Approval by System</u>. Notwithstanding the powers delegated to the Board of Directors of the Corporation, the Corporation may not contract with the Board of Regents to invest funds under the control and management of the Board of Regents, including the permanent university fund, unless and until the Board of Regents has approved (i) the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Corporation; (ii) the investment policies of the Corporation; (iii) the audit and ethics committee of the Corporation; and (iv) the code of ethics of the Corporation. Furthermore, the Board of Regents must approve (i) any amendments to the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Corporation; (ii) any changes to the investment policies of the Corporation; (iii) any changes in the audit and ethics committee of the Corporation; and (iv) any changes in the code of ethics of the Corporation. The Corporation shall file reports with the Board

of Regents quarterly, and at such other times as requested by the Board of Regents, concerning such matters as required by the Board of Regents.

Section 5. Prohibited Transactions. In addition to the prohibitions of the laws of the State of Texas, the Corporation may not enter into an agreement or transaction with a former director, officer, or employee of the Corporation, or a business entity in which a former director, officer, or employee of the Corporation has an interest, on or before the first anniversary of the date the person ceased to be a director, officer, or employee of the Corporation. For purposes of this section (i) a former director, officer, or employee of the Corporation has an interest in a business entity if such person owns (a) five percent or more of the voting stock or shares of the business entity or (b) five percent or more of the fair market value of the business entity, and (ii) a former director of the Corporation has an interest in a business entity if money received by such person from the business entity exceeds five percent of the person's gross income for the preceding calendar year. A two-thirds majority of the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall be required to forward to the Board of Regents a change to this Section.

Section 6. Revolving Door. A former director or employee of the Corporation may not make any communication to or appearance before a current director or employee of the Corporation before the second anniversary, in the case of a former director, or the first anniversary, in the case of a former employee, of the date the former director or employee ceased to be a director or employee of the Corporation if the communication or appearance is made (a) with the intent to influence, and (b) on behalf of any person in connection with any matter on which the person seeks action by the Corporation. If a director of the Corporation knowingly communicates with a former director or employee of the Corporation, whose communication or appearance is made with the intent to influence, and on behalf of any person in connection with any matter on which the person seeks action by the Corporation, such director shall be subject to removal from serving as a director of the Corporation. If an employee of the Corporation knowingly communicates with a former director or employee of the Corporation whose communication or appearance is made with the intent to influence, and on behalf of any person in connection with any matter on which the person seeks action by the Corporation, such director or employee shall be subject to disciplinary action. A two-thirds majority of the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall be required to forward to the Board of Regents a change to this Section.

ARTICLE II OFFICES

- Section 1. <u>Principal Place of Business</u>. The principal place of business of the Corporation shall be located at 210 West 7th Street, 17th Floor, Austin, Texas 78701. The Corporation may have such other offices, either within or without the State of Texas, as the Board of Directors may determine or as the affairs of the Corporation may require from time to time.
- Section 2. <u>Registered Office and Registered Agent</u>. The Corporation shall have and continuously maintain in the State of Texas a registered office and a registered agent whose office is the Corporation's registered office, as required by the TBOC. The registered office may, but need not, be identical with the principal office of the Corporation in the State of Texas, and the address of the registered office may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors in accordance with applicable law.

ARTICLE III BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- Section 1. <u>Powers</u>. The property, business, and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed and controlled by the Board of Directors, and subject to the restrictions imposed by law, the Articles of Incorporation, and these Bylaws, the Board of Directors shall exercise all of the powers of the Corporation.
- Section 2. <u>Number</u>. The Board of Directors shall consist of nine (9) Directors consistent with Texas Education Code Section 66.08.
- Section 3. Appointment and Term. In compliance with applicable law, seven (7) Directors shall be appointed by the Board of Regents, pursuant to a process determined by the Board of Regents and shall include (i) at least three (3) persons then serving as members of the Board of Regents ("Regental Directors"), (ii) three (3) persons with substantial background and expertise in investments, and (iii) one qualified individual as determined by the Board of Regents, which may include the Chancellor of The University of Texas System; and two (2) Directors shall be appointed by the Board of Regents of The Texas A&M University System pursuant to a process determined by the Board of Regents of The Texas A&M University System and shall include at least one (1) person with substantial background and expertise in investments. If appointed to the UTIMCO Board by the Board of Regents, the Chancellor of the System shall serve as a Director so long as he or she remains Chancellor of the System or until the Chancellor's earlier removal or resignation as provided in these Bylaws. The three (3) Regental Directors shall serve for two-year terms that expire on the first day of April of each odd-numbered year. The remaining Directors (other than the Chancellor of the System and the Regental Directors) shall serve three-year staggered terms that expire on the first day of April of the appropriate year. No such Director (other than the Chancellor of the System and the Regental Directors) shall serve more than three (3) full three-year terms. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board of Regents may, from time to time, alter the terms of the Directors it is authorized to appoint and the Board of Regents of The Texas A&M University System may, from time to time, alter the terms of the Directors it is authorized to appoint. Each person serving as a Director shall serve until the expiration of such Director's term, or until such Director's successor has been chosen and qualified, or until such Director's earlier death, resignation, or removal as provided in these Bylaws.
- Section 4. Removal and Resignation. Any Director appointed by the Board of Regents may be removed from office at any time, with or without cause, by the Board of Regents. Any Director appointed by the Board of Regents of The Texas A&M University System may be removed from office at any time, with or without cause, by the Board of Regents of The Texas A&M University System. Any Director or officer may resign at any time. Such resignation shall be made in writing and shall take effect at the time specified therein, or, if no time be specified, at the time of its receipt by the President or Secretary. The acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective, unless expressly so provided in the resignation.
- Section 5. <u>Vacancies</u>. Any vacancy occurring in the office of a Director, whether by death, resignation, removal, increase in the number of Directors, or otherwise, shall be filled by the entity authorized to appoint the Director.

- Section 6. <u>Meetings of Directors</u>. The Directors may hold meetings and keep the Corporation's books and records at such place or places within the State of Texas as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.
- Section 7. <u>Annual Meetings</u>. The annual meeting of the Board of Directors ("Annual Meeting") shall be held at such time and place as shall be designated from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors, or, if not so designated, on the third Thursday of the month of April of each year at the Corporation's principal office for the purpose of (i) electing officers for the ensuing year, and (ii) transacting such other business as may be properly brought before such Annual Meeting. Notice of Annual Meetings shall be required.

At the request of the U. T. Board of Regents, a joint meeting with the U. T. Board of Regents ("Joint Meeting") shall be held to discuss investment policies including asset allocation, investment performance, determination of risk, performance of the Corporation, organizational issues, proposed budget, and related issues. Notice of Joint Meetings shall be required.

- Section 8. <u>Regular Meetings</u>. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors ("Regular Meetings") shall be held at such times and places as shall be designated from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors. Notice of Regular Meetings shall be required. The UTIMCO President shall consult with the Chairman and the Chancellor on the draft agenda for meetings of the UTIMCO Board at least three (3) weeks prior to each regular UTIMCO Board meeting.
- Section 9. <u>Special Meetings</u>. Special meetings of the Board of Directors ("Special Meetings") shall be held at such times and places as shall be designated from time to time by the Chairman or, on the written request of any Director, by the Secretary or on the written request of the Board of Regents. Notice of Special Meetings shall be required.
- Section 10. <u>Notice of Meetings</u>. The Secretary shall give notice of the time and place of each Annual, Joint, Regular and Special Meeting to each Director in person, or by mail, electronic mail, telegraph, or telephone, at least five (5) days before and not sooner than fifty (50) days before such meeting; provided, however, that in the case of a Special Meeting called because of an emergency or urgent necessity, notice will be provided as required by the Texas Open Meetings Act.
- Section 11. Quorum. A majority of the then acting Directors shall constitute a quorum for the consideration of any matters pertaining to the Corporation's purposes. If at any meeting of the Board of Directors there is less than a quorum present, the Chairman may adjourn the meeting from time to time. The act of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws.
 - Section 12. <u>Voting</u>. Directors must vote in person and proxy voting is prohibited.
- Section 13. <u>Conduct of Business</u>. At meetings of the Board of Directors, matters pertaining to the Corporation's purposes shall be considered.

At all meetings of the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board shall preside, and in the absence of the Chairman of the Board, the Vice Chairman of the Board or the Vice Chairman for Policy shall preside. In the absence of the Chairman of the Board and the Vice Chairmen of the Board, a chairman shall be chosen by the Board of Directors from among the Directors present.

The Secretary of the Corporation shall act as secretary of all meetings of the Board of Directors, but in the absence of the Secretary, the Chairman may appoint any person to act as secretary of the meeting.

The chairman of any meeting of the Board of Directors shall determine the order of business and the procedure at the meeting, including, without limitation, conduct of the discussion and the order of business pursuant to a duly posted agenda.

Section 14. <u>Compensation of Directors; Expenses</u>. Persons serving as Directors shall not receive any salary or compensation for their services as Directors. A Director shall be entitled to reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred by the Director in carrying out duties as a Director.

ARTICLE IV COMMITTEES

Section 1. <u>Board Committees</u>. The Board of Directors may from time to time designate members of the Board of Directors to constitute committees that shall have and may exercise such powers as a majority of the Board of Directors may determine in the resolution that creates the committee; provided, however, that the Board of Regents must approve the audit and ethics committee of the Corporation as required by applicable law and further provided that the full UTIMCO Board shall fully review, discuss, and approve performance compensation for UTIMCO officers and employees following careful consideration and due diligence. The Board of Directors may appoint individuals who are not members of the Board of Directors to any committee; provided, however, that a majority of the committee members shall be members of the Board of Directors if such committee exercises the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the Corporation.

Other committees, not having and exercising the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the Corporation, may be designated and members appointed by a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors. Membership of such committees may, but need not, be limited to Directors.

Any Director appointed to a committee designated by the Board of Directors shall cease to be a member of such committee when he or she is no longer serving as Director.

Section 2. Procedures; Meetings; Quorum. Any committee created by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws, unless otherwise expressly provided herein, shall (i) have a chairman designated by the Board of Directors, (ii) fix its own rules or procedures, (iii) meet at such times and at such place or places as may be provided by such rules or by resolution of such committee or resolution of the Board of Directors, and (iv) keep regular minutes of its meetings and cause such minutes to be recorded in books kept for that purpose in the principal office of the Corporation, and report the same to the Board of Directors at its next Regular Meeting. At every meeting of any such committee, the presence of a majority of all the members thereof shall constitute a quorum, and the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present shall be

necessary for the adoption by it of any action, unless otherwise expressly provided in the committee's rules or procedures or these Bylaws or by the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors may designate one or more Directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of such committee.

Section 3. <u>Nominating Committee</u>. The Chairman may appoint a Nominating Committee to make recommendations to him or her on positions as requested.

ARTICLE V OFFICERS

- Section 1. Number, Titles, and Term of Office. The officers of the Corporation shall consist of a Chairman of the Board, a Vice Chairman for Policy, a Vice Chairman of the Board, a President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, and such other officers and assistant officers as the Board of Directors may from time to time elect or appoint. Such other officers and assistant officers shall have such authority and responsibility as may be assigned to them by the Board of Directors. Any two (2) or more offices may be held by the same individual, except the offices of President and Secretary and the offices of Chairman and Vice Chairman. Except for those officers elected at the organizational meeting (the "Organization Meeting"), the term of office for each officer shall be until the next succeeding Annual Meeting at which officers are elected. The term of office for those officers elected at the Organization Meeting shall be that period of time beginning on the date of the Organization Meeting and ending on the date of the first Annual Meeting. In any event, a duly-elected officer shall serve in the office to which he or she is elected until his or her successor has been duly elected and qualified.
- Section 2. <u>Removal</u>. Any officer or agent or member of a committee elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the individual so removed. Election or appointment of an officer or agent or member of a committee shall not of itself create contract rights.
- Section 3. <u>Vacancies</u>. Any vacancy occurring in any office of the Corporation may be filled by the Board of Directors.
- Section 4. <u>Powers and Duties of the Chairman of the Board</u>. The Chairman of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and shall have such other powers and duties as may be assigned to such officer in these Bylaws or from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Board shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.
- Section 5. Powers and Duties of the Vice Chairman of the Board. The Vice Chairman of the Board shall have such powers and duties as may be assigned to such officer in these Bylaws or from time to time by the Board of Directors and shall exercise the powers of the Chairman during that officer's absence or inability to act. Any action taken by the Vice Chairman in the performance of the duties of the Chairman shall be conclusive evidence of the absence or inability to act of the Chairman at the time such action was taken. The Vice Chairman of the Board shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.

Section 6. Powers and Duties of the Vice Chairman for Policy. If appointed to the UTIMCO Board by the Board of Regents, the Chancellor of the System shall serve as Vice Chairman for Policy; otherwise, the Board shall appoint another Director to serve as the Vice Chairman for Policy. The Vice Chairman for Policy shall coordinate those responsibilities, including the appropriate resolution of policy issues, assigned to UTIMCO and System by the Rules and Regulations of the Board of Regents and the Master Investment Management Services Agreement with UTIMCO to facilitate UTIMCO's performance of its core investment duties. The Vice Chairman for Policy shall exercise the powers of the Chairman during the absence or inability to act of both the Chairman and the Vice Chairman of the Board. Any action taken by the Vice Chairman in the performance of the duties of the Chairman shall be conclusive evidence of the absence or inability to act of the Chairman and the Vice Chairman at the time such action was taken.

Section 7. Powers and Duties of the President. All references to the President in this document shall mean the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. If the positions of President and Chief Executive Officer are held by different individuals the responsibilities designated to the President in these Bylaws shall be performed by the Chief Executive Officer. Subject to the control of the Board of Directors, the President shall have general executive charge, management, and control of the properties, business, and operations of the Corporation with all such powers as may be reasonably incident to such responsibilities; shall have the authority to agree upon and execute all leases, contracts, evidences of indebtedness, and other obligations in the name of the Corporation subject to the approval of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee, if any; and shall have such other powers and duties as may be designated in these Bylaws and as may be assigned to such officer from time to time by the Board of Directors pursuant to a duly approved Delegation of Authority Policy.

Section 8. Powers and Duties of the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have custody of all of the Corporation's funds and securities that come into such officer's hands. When necessary or proper, the Treasurer may endorse or cause to be endorsed, in the name and on behalf of the Corporation, checks, notes, and other obligations for collection and shall deposit or cause to be deposited the same to the credit of the Corporation in such bank or banks or depositories and in such manner as shall be designated and prescribed by the Board of Directors; may sign or cause to be signed all receipts and vouchers for payments made to the Corporation either alone or jointly with such other officer as may be designated by the Board of Directors; whenever required by the Board of Directors, shall render or cause to be rendered a statement of the cash account; shall enter or cause to be entered regularly in the Corporation's books to be kept by such officer for that purpose full and accurate accounts of all moneys received and paid out on account of the Corporation; shall perform all acts incident to the position of Treasurer subject to the control of the Board of Directors; and shall, if required by the Board of Directors, give such bond for the faithful discharge of such officer's duties in such form as the Board of Directors may require.

Section 9. <u>Powers and Duties of the Secretary</u>. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors in books provided for that purpose; shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices; in furtherance of the Corporation's purposes and subject to the limitations contained in the Articles of Incorporation, may sign with the President in the name and on behalf of the Corporation and/or attest the signatures thereto, all contracts, conveyances, franchises, bonds, deeds, assignments, mortgages, notes, and other instruments of the Corporation;

shall have charge of the Corporation's books, records, documents, and instruments, except the books of account and financial records and securities of which the Treasurer shall have custody and charge, and such other books and papers as the Board of Directors may direct, all of which shall be open at reasonable times to the inspection of any Director upon application at the Corporation's office during business hours; and shall in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary subject to the control of the Board of Directors. The Secretary shall assure that current copies of the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, Corporation Policies, Investment Policies approved by the Board of Regents, Committee Charters, and Minutes of all meetings of the Corporation and Committees are posted on the Corporation's website. The Secretary will assure that all open meetings of the Corporation are recorded and that recordings are available upon request.

ARTICLE VI MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- Section 1. <u>Fiscal Year</u>. The Corporation's fiscal year shall be as determined from time to time by the Board of Directors.
- Section 2. <u>Seal</u>. The Corporation's seal, if any, shall be such as may be approved from time to time by the Board of Directors.
- Section 3. <u>Notice and Waiver of Notice</u>. Whenever any notice is required to be given by mail under the provisions of these Bylaws, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail in a sealed postpaid wrapper addressed to the person or Board of Regents entitled thereto at such person's post office address, as such appears in the records of the Corporation, and such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the date of such mailing. A waiver of notice in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to notice.
- Section 4. <u>Public Information</u>. The Board of Directors shall comply with applicable provisions of the Texas Public Information Act.
- Section 5. <u>Open Meetings</u>. The Board of Directors shall conduct open meetings in accordance with Section 66.08(h), <u>Texas Education Code</u>. The Secretary is required to provide public notice of such meetings in accordance with applicable law therewith.

ARTICLE VII INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Section 1. <u>Right to Indemnification</u>. Subject to any limitations and conditions in these Bylaws, including, without limitation, this Article VII, each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is involved in any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, arbitrative or investigative (a "Proceeding"), or any appeal of such a Proceeding or any inquiry or investigation that could lead to a Proceeding, by reason of the fact that he or a person of whom he is the legal representative, is or was a Director or officer of the Corporation, or while a Director or officer of the Corporation is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, partner, venturer, proprietor, trustee, employee, agent, or similar functionary of another foreign or domestic corporation,

partnership, joint venture, sole proprietorship, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise, shall be indemnified by the Corporation to the fullest extent authorized by the TBOC, as the same exists or may hereafter be amended (but, in the case of any such amendment, only to the extent that such amendment permits the Corporation to provide broader indemnification rights than said law permitted the Corporation to provide prior to such amendment), against judgments, penalties (including excise and similar taxes), fines, settlements and reasonable expenses (including, without limitation, attorneys' fees) actually incurred by such person in connection with a Proceeding, but if the Proceeding was brought by or in behalf of the Corporation, the indemnification is limited to reasonable expenses actually incurred or suffered by such person in connection therewith, and indemnification under these Bylaws shall continue as to a person who has ceased to serve in the capacity which initially entitled such person to indemnity hereunder. In no case, however, shall the Corporation indemnify any person, or the legal representatives of any person, with respect to any matters as to which such person shall be finally adjudged in any such Proceeding to be liable on the basis that personal benefit resulted from an action taken in such person's official capacity, or in which such person is found liable to the Corporation. Any person entitled to indemnification pursuant to this Article VII is sometimes referred to herein as an "Indemnified Person."

- Section 2. <u>Advance Payment</u>. An Indemnified Person's right to indemnification conferred in this Article VII shall include the right to be paid or reimbursed by the Corporation the reasonable expenses incurred by an Indemnified Person who was, is or is threatened to be made a named defendant or respondent in a Proceeding in advance of the final disposition of the Proceeding; provided, however, that the payment of such expenses incurred by an Indemnified Person in advance of the final disposition of a Proceeding shall be made only upon delivery to the Corporation of a written affirmation by such Indemnified Person of his or her good faith belief that he or she has met the standard of conduct necessary for indemnification under this Article VII and a written undertaking by or on behalf of such Indemnified Person to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be determined that such Indemnified Person is not entitled to be indemnified under this Article VII or otherwise.
- Section 3. <u>Appearance as a Witness</u>. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article VII, the Corporation may pay or reimburse expenses incurred by an Indemnified Person in connection with his or her appearance as a witness or other participation in a Proceeding at a time when the Indemnified Person is not a named defendant or respondent in the Proceeding.
- Section 4. <u>Nonexclusivity of Rights</u>. The right to indemnification and the advancement and payment of expenses conferred in this Article VII shall not be exclusive of any other right which an Indemnified Person may have or hereafter acquire under any law (common or statutory), the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws, agreement, vote of disinterested Director or otherwise.
- Section 5. <u>Insurance</u>. The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance, at its expense, to protect itself or any Indemnified Person, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify such person against such expense, liability or loss under this Article VII.
- Section 6. <u>Savings Clause</u>. If this Article VII or any portion hereof shall be invalidated on any ground by any court of competent jurisdiction, then the Corporation shall nevertheless indemnify and hold harmless each Indemnified Person as to costs, charges and expenses (including

attorneys' fees), judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement with respect to any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative to the full extent permitted by any applicable portion of this Article VII that shall not have been invalidated and to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law.

ARTICLE VIII AMENDMENTS

Section 1. <u>Amendment</u>. These Bylaws may be altered, amended, or repealed by the Board of Directors with the approval of the Board of Regents. A request by the Board of Regents to consider an alteration, amendment, or repeal of these Bylaws will be considered at the next regular meeting of the Corporation or at a special meeting called for that purpose.